Ton Manoger TOWN OF TAPPAHANNOCK
Eric Pollitt

Town Atlarncy P. O. Box 266

Diane M. Lank Tappahannock, Virginia 22560

Town Treasurer (804) 443-3336 Fax (804) 443-1051
Faye D. Johnson wiww.tappahannock-va.gov

Tou’n (‘:’/GrL1

Patsy K. Scates

Chicf of Police
James G. Ashworth Jr. April 9, 2021

To: Mayor, Town Attorney, and All Council Members:

The regular meeting will be held on:

MONDAY, APRIL 12, 2021 6:45 P.M.

LOCATION: VIRTUAL

Per the restrictions placed by the Governor of Virginia the meeting will be held by zoom.

PLEASE FIND ENCLOSED THE FOLLOWING:
Agenda

Public Hearing Notice

Agenda Notes

Water/Sewer Report

Town Manager Report

VRA Refinance Packet

Mileage Reimbursement

Gene Reams and Associates Contract
Tappahannock Fagade Grant Program

W Nk L=

Mayor

Roy M. Gladding
Town Council

Kay Carlton
Marcia W, Jenkins
Fleet Dillard
Kenneth A. Gillis
Troy L. Baldersan
Anita ). Latane



TOWN OF TAPPAHANNOCK
P.O. Box 266
Tappahannock, VA 22560
Phone (804) 443-3336
Fax (804) 443-1051
www.tappahannock-va.gov

Town Manager Mayor

Eric Poliitt Roy M. Gladding
Town Atrorney Town Council
Diane M. Lank Kay Carlt

Town Treasurer TOWN COUNCIL AGEN DA M?;ci: r\’V<.)tl]cnl\'ins
Faye D. Johnson Fleet Dillard
lTown Cleé'k APRIL 1 2 ’ 202 1 Kenneth A. Gillis
Patsy K. Scates Troy L. Balderson
Chief of Police 6 :45 P . M . Anita J. Latane

James G. Ashworth, Jr.

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85381758775

Meeting ID: 853 8175 8775
One tap mobile
Dial by your location
+1 646 876 9923 US (New York)
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
Meeting ID: 853 8175 8775
Find your local number: https://usO2web.zoom.us/u/keycBwésIG

L Public Hearing will be held at 6:45.

Regular Meeting will be held following the public hearing.

1. Call to order

2. Reading and approval of the March 8, 2021 Work Session Council Minutes and the March 8,
2021 Council Meeting Minutes and the March 25, 2021 Public Hearing Minutes/Special Council
Meeting Minutes

3. Welcome Visitors

4.1, Committee Reports
a. Water/Sewer — Gillis

b. Public Facilities — Balderson
c. Finance — Jenkins



4.2. Approval of the financial report for the month of March 2021
4.3. Town Manager monthly report
5.0. New Business

5.1. VRA Refinance
Council should consider proceeding with refinancing VRA Loan based on bid responses

5.2. Reappointment to the Planning Commission
Council should consider the reappointment of Shannon Clunie for a four-year term to expire on May
9,2025

5.3. Appointment to the Airport Authority
Council should consider recommending to the Essex County Board of Supervisors the appointment of
Eric Pollitt to the Tappahannock-Essex Airport Authority for a term of one year.

5.4. Mileage Reimbursement
Council should consider modifying the mileage reimbursement of an employee from .26 per mile to
the standard IRS annual mileage rate

5.5. Gene Reams
Council should consider approving Gene Reams services to search and apply for a grant for the police
department’s generator.

5.6. Tommy Blackwell
Council will hear from Mr. Blackwell about real estate reassessment and the Town equalized tax rate.

5.7. Tappahannock Facade Grant Program
Council should consider the changes to the Tappahannock Fagade Grant Program.

5.8. Zoning Amendment
Council should consider amending the zoning ordinance to permit alcoholic beverage manufacturing

in the CC1(Central Commercial) and CG-2 (General Commercial) Zoning districts.



NOTICE

In accordance with Section 15.2-2204 of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as amended Notice is
hereby given that the Tappahannock Town Council will hold a public hearing on:

April 12, 2021
6:45 p.m.
LOCATION: VIRTUAL

Join Zoom Meeting
https://usO2web.zoom.us/j/85381758775

Meeting ID: 853 8175 8775
One tap mobile
Dial by your location
+1 646 876 9923 US (New York)
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
Meeting ID: 853 8175 8775
Find your local number: https://usO2web.zoom .us/u/keycBw6sIG

The purpose of the public hearing is to consider the following amendments to the
Tappahannock Zoning Ordinance:

Article X Section 22-125 Permitted Uses -Alcoholic Beverage Manufacturing as a
Permissible Use in the Central Commercial (CC1) and the General Commercial (€G2)
Zoning Districts.

A full copy of the proposed ordinance is on file at the Tappahannock Municipal
Building, 915 Church Lane, Tappahannock, Virginia and is available for inspection
Monday thru Friday between the hours of 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. and interested
parties may appear to express their opinions regarding the proposed zoning
amendment.

Eric Pollitt
Zoning Administrator

Notice — Public Hearing April 12, 2021 - Alcoholic Beverage Manufacturing



TOWN OF TAPPAHANNOCK
P.O. Box 266
Tappahannock, VA 22560
Phone (804) 443-3336
Fax (804) 443-1051
www.tappahannock-va.gov

Town Manager Mayor

Eric Pollitt Roy M. Gladding
Town Atrorney Town Council
Diane M. Lank Kay Carlton

Town Treasurer Marcia W. Jenkins
Faye D. Johnson . Fleet Dillard

Town Clerk Agenda Notes for Aprll 12, 2021 Kenneth A. Gillis
Patsy K. Scates Troy L. Balderson
Chief of Police Anita J. Latane

James G. Ashworth, Jr.

2. Council should consider the approval of the following minutes:
March 8, 2021 Work Session Council Minutes, March 8, 2021 Council Meeting Minutes, and the March

25,2021 Public Hearing/Special Council Meeting Minutes
e ACTION NEEDED: Motion to approve the above minutes

4.2. Council should consider the approval of the financial report
* ACTION NEEDED: Motion to approve the March, 2021 financial report

5.1. Council should consider proceeding with refinancing VRA Loan based on bid responses

¢ ACTION NEEDED: Motion to proceed with refinancing VRA Loan

S.2. Council should consider the reappointment of Shannon Clunie to the Planning Commission

e ACTION NEEDED: Motion to reappoint Shannon Clunie for a four-year term to the
planning commission to expire on May 9, 2025

S.3. Council should consider recommending to the Essex County Board of Supervisors the

appointment of Eric Pollitt to the Tappahannock-Essex Airport Authority for a term of one year.
e ACTION NEEDED: Motion consider recommending to the Essex County Board of
Supervisors the appointment of Eric Pollitt to the Tappahannock-Essex Airport Authority
for a term of one year.

5.4. Council should consider modifying the mileage reimbursement of an employee from .26 per

mile to the standard IRS annual mileage rate.
¢ ACTION NEEDED: Motion to modify the mileage reimbursement of an employee from .26

per mile to the standard IRS annual mileage rate.



5.3. Council should consider approving Gene Reams services to search and apply for a grant for the

police department generator.
* ACTION NEEDED: Motion to approve Gene Reams services to search and apply for a

grant for the police department generator.

5.7. Council should consider changes to the Tappahannock Facade Grant Program

¢ ACTION NEEDED: Motion to approve the changes to the Tappahannock Fagade Grant
Program

S5.8. Council should consider amending the zoning ordinance to permit alcoholic beverages

manufacturing in the CC1 (Central Commercial) and the CG-2 (General Commercial) zoning

districts
* ACTION NEEDED: Motion to amend the zoning ordinance to permit alcoholic beverages
manufacturing in the CC1(Central Commercial and the CG-2 (General Commercial)
zoning districts.



Town Manager TOWN OF TAPPAHANNOCK
Eric Pollitt

Town Aliarncy P. O. Box 266

Diane M. Lank Tappahannock, Virginia 22560

Town Treasurer (804) 443-3336 Fax (804) 443-1051
Faye D. Johnson www.tappal‘tannocle-va.gov

Town Clerk
Patsy K. Scates

Chief of Police
James G. Ashworth Jr.

PUBLIC WORKS & TREATMENT PLANT REPORT

Public Works: Report for March 2021

The Maintenance Department made a repaired a water leak on a one-inch line near the

intersection of Tidewater Trail and Airport Road.

Mayor

Roy M. Gladding
Town Council

Kay Carlton
Marcia W, Jenkins
Fleet Dillard
Kenneth A. Gillis
Troy L. Balderson
Anita J. Latane

Personnel also replaced a section of sewer pipe at Ware Avenue and freed up a blockage

on a sewer line located in Wakefield.

Department preparing and servicing equipment for upcoming grass season.

Sanitary Department continues to do good work

Treatment Plant: Report for March 2021

Continues to have elevated flows however all testing results were within compliance

limits with no violations.

Chemical addition tank has been cleaned and will be restored for service soon.



Toun Manager TOWN OF TAPPAHANNOCK Mayor

Eric Pollitt Roy M. Gladding
Town Attornay P. O. Box 266 Town Council
Diane M. Lank Tappahannock, Virginia 22560 Kay Carlton
Town Treasiss (804) 443-3336 Fax (804) 443-1051 Marcia W, Jenkins
Faye D. )ol’mson www.tapp h k gov Fleet Dillard
Town Clerk Kenneth A. Gillis
Patsy K. Scates Troy L. Balderson
Chie[ of Police Anita ]. Latane

James G. Ashworth Je

MEMORANDUM

Town Manager Report 4/12/2021

As of Thursday April 8", a response is being drafted to the Essex County EDA February 12, 2021
resolution. The content of the response consists of feedback and discussion from the Town’s Economic
Development Committee. A final response via email will be provided to Council before delivering to
the Essex County EDA.

Beth with Tappahannock Main St. and I are working on the town’s Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG) Planning Grant which became available April 1. The planning grant requires no match,
is first-come first-serve, and will ultimately help us design a master plan for the Main St. district.
Implementation action steps for grants will be accompanied with the final version of the master plan.

Beth and I have prepared a general survey for public input on the park. We would like some general
guidance from the public before starting the master planning for this space. We have features for the
park in mind. We have also begun the search for landscape architects.

USDA-RD provided us an update on our grant applications for the trash truck and sewer cameras. The
area representative said our applications should be approved before June 1 which means we should be
eligible for additional grant funding due to a hurricane coming through the area in the last 20 years
(can’t recall which hurricane). We should be able to proceed with the bid and purchase process in the
summer or fall of 2021.

Staff is currently working with the Public Facilities Committee on new entrance sign options. We hope
to have 2 sign options for the May meeting. The logo needs to be updated and we have reached out to a
facilitator/ designer to help us brainstorm ideas for the new logo. The facilitator/ designer came with a
strong recommendation from the Public Facilities Committee. At the May meeting, the facilitator would
like your ideas and feedback for a new logo. This could be colors, images, or symbols that the
community identifies with. Once we have the initial ideas, a committee will guide the facilitator/
designer through the logo development process to a final product for council to adopt by resolution.

The Earl St. sewer line and manhole replacement project began Monday April 5%. The project is
expected to be wrapped up by Friday April 16", If any major problems occur, Council will be notified.
We had a meeting scheduled Thursday April 8" with the company replacing the Hoskins Creek sewer
line but had to reschedule for the week of April 12%, The financing is lined up for the project and the
necessary permits have been approved. We hope to start replacement before May 1.



CERTIFICATE OF THE CLERK OF THE
TOWN OF TAPPAHANNOCK, VIRGINIA

The undersigned Clerk of the Town of Tappahannock, Virginia (the “Town”), certifies that:

1. A meeting of the Council (the “Council”) of the Town was held on April 12, 2021
(the “Meeting”).

2 Attached hereto is a true, correct and complete copy of a resolution (the
"Resolution") of the Council entitled "Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of
Tappahannock, Virginia, Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of its General Obligation Refunding
Bond (Taxable), Series 2021 in a Maximum Principal Amount Not to Exceed $1,465,000, and the
Execution and Delivery of Certain Documents Prepared in Connection Therewith," as recorded in
full in the minutes of the Meeting and duly adopted by a majority of the members of the Council
present and voting during the Meeting.

3. A summary of the members of the Council present or absent at the Meeting, and
the recorded vote with respect to the Resolution, is set forth below:

Voting
Member Name Present Absent Yes No Abstaining

Roy M. Gladding, Mayor

Marcia W. Jenkins, Vice Mayor

Troy L. Balderson

Kay Carlton

Fleet Dillard

Kenneth A. Gillis

Anita J. Latane

4. The Resolution has not been repealed, revoked, rescinded or amended, and is in full
force and effect on the date hereof.

WITNESS my signature and the seal of the Town, this day of April, 2021.

(SEAL) Clerk of Town of Tappahannock, Virginia



Prepared by: Howard P. Estes, Jr.
Estes Law & Consulting

13207 Broncroft Ct.

Midlothian, VA 2313

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
TAPPAHANNOCK, VIRGINIA, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND
SALE OF ITS GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND
(TAXABLE), SERIES 2021 IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $1,465,000, AND THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY
OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS PREPARED IN CONNECTION
THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the Town of Tappahannock, Virginia (the “Town”), has determined that it is
advisable and in the interest of the Town to refinance its $2,410,000 General Obligation Bond,
Series 2016B (the “Prior Bond™), together with related administrative and financing costs (“the
Project™); and

WHEREAS, the Town intends to finance the Project through the issuance of its general
obligation bond under such terms, limitations and conditions as set forth in this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the Council has previously received a proposal from the VML/VACO
Finance Program to solicit proposals from banking institutions and received a proposal from Truist
Bank (the “Lender”™) to purchase the Bond and loan funds for the Project; and

WHEREAS, after such solicitation, staff recommends the proposal from the Lender for
the loan and the sale of the Town’s general obligation bond to the Lender in accordance with the
terms of a Bond Purchase and Loan Agreement between the Lender and the Town (the
“Agreement”), the form of which has been presented to this meeting;

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF TAPPAHANNOCK,
VIRGINIA:

1. Issuance of Bond and Use of Proceeds. Pursuant to the Constitution of the
Commonwealth of Virginia and the Public Finance Act of 1991, as amended (the “Public Finance
Act”), Title 15.2, Chapter 26 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended (the “Virginia Code™)
and without regard to any requirements or restrictions contained in any charter or special act of the
Town, the Council hereby authorizes the issuance and sale of a general obligation bond of the
Town in an aggregate principal amount set forth below, together with other monies of the Town,
to provide funds to finance the Project.

2. Authorization of Bond Purchase and Loan Agreement. The form of the Bond
Purchase and Loan Agreement (the “Agreement™) submitted to this meeting is hereby approved.
The Mayor and the Town Manager, either of whom may act (each an “Authorized Signatory”), are
authorized to execute the Agreement in substantially such form, with such completions, omissions,
insertions and changes not inconsistent with this Resolution as may be approved by such official,
whose approval shall be evidenced conclusively by the execution and delivery thereof. The
issuance and sale of the bond to the Lender shall be upon the terms and conditions of the
Agreement. The proceeds of such bond shall be applied in the manner set forth in the Agreement.

1



All capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the same meaning as set
forth in the Agreement.

3. Bond Details. The bond shall be issued as a single, fully registered bond, shall be
designated “General Obligation Advance Refunding Bond, Series 2021B” (the “Bond”), shall be
numbered R-1, and shall be in substantially the form of Exhibit A to this Resolution as hereby
approved, with such completions, omissions, insertions and changes not inconsistent with this
Resolution as may be approved by the officers signing such Bond. The Council authorizes the
issuance and sale of the Bond on such terms as shall be satisfactory to the Authorized Signatory;
provided however, that the Bond (a) shall be in a principal amount not to exceed $1,465,000; (b)
shall mature no later than October 1, 2026; and (c) shall bear interest on the outstanding principal
balance thereof at a rate of interest approved by the Authorized Signatory, with such rate to not
exceed 2.07% (provided that default interest may be payable at a rate in excess thereof as provided
in the Agreement and the rate may adjust as provided in the Bond and the Agreement), shall accrue
certain other ongoing costs and expenses upon the terms and conditions described in the
Agreement. As set forth in the Agreement, the Town agrees to pay any applicable late payment
or similar costs and expenses described therein. Subject to the preceding terms, the Council further
authorizes the Authorized Signatory to determine the final terms, purchase price, initial interest
rate, interest rate adjustment provisions, maturity date, and amortization schedule of the Bond. No
further action shall be necessary on the part of the Town so long as such provisions are within the
limits prescribed in this Resolution.

4. Payment and Redemption Provisions. The principal of and premium, if any, and
interest on the Bond shall be payable as set forth in the Bond and the Agreement. The Bond shall
be subject to redemption on the terms set forth in the related Agreement. The principal of and
premium, if any, and interest on the Bond shall be payable via wire transfer in lawful money of
the United States of America, without presentation or surrender.

S. Execution and Form of Bond. The Bond shall be signed by the Mayor or Vice-
Mayor and the Town’s seal shall be affixed thereon and attested by the Clerk or Deputy Clerk of
the Town. The Bond shall be issued as a typewritten bond in substantially the form of Exhibit A,
with such completions, omissions, insertions and changes not inconsistent with this Resolution as
may be approved by the Authorized Signatory, whose approval shall be evidenced conclusively
by the execution and delivery of the Bond.

6. Pledge of Full Faith and Credit. The full faith and credit of the Town are hereby
irrevocably pledged for the payment of principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bond.
Unless other funds are lawfully available and appropriated for timely payment of the Bond, the
Council shall levy and collect an annual ad valorem tax, over and above all other taxes authorized
or limited by law and without limitation as to rate or amount, on all locally taxable property in the
Town sufficient to pay when due the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bond.

7. Preparation of Printed Bond; Mutilated or Destroyed Bond. The printed Bond
may be executed by manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor or Vice-Mayor, the Town’s seal
affixed thereto and attested by the Clerk or Deputy Clerk of the Town; provided, however, that if
both such signatures are facsimiles, the bond shall not be valid until it has been authenticated by
the manual signature of the Registrar (as defined below) and the date of authentication noted

2



thereon. If the Bond has been mutilated, lost or destroyed, the Town shall execute and deliver a
new bond of like date and tenor in exchange and substitution for, and upon cancellation of, such
mutilated Bond or in lieu of and in substitution for such lost or destroyed Bond; provided, however,
that the Town shall so execute and deliver only if the registered owner has paid the reasonable
expenses and charges of the Town in connection therewith and, in the case of a lost or destroyed
Bond has filed with the Town an affidavit reasonably satisfactory to the Town that such Bond was
lost or destroyed. The Bond surrendered in any such exchange shall be canceled.

8. Registration and Transfer of the Bond. The Town appoints the Town Treasurer
as registrar (the “Registrar”) for the Bond and shall maintain registration books for the registration
and registration of any transfer of the Bond. Upon surrender of the Bond at the office of the
Registrar, together with an assignment duly executed by the registered owner or its duly authorized
attorney or legal representative in such form as shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Registrar,
the Town shall execute, and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange, a new Bond
or bonds having an equal aggregate principal amount, of the same form and maturity, bearing
interest at the same rates and registered in such name as requested by the then registered owner or
its duly authorized attorney or legal representative. Any such exchange shall be at the expense of
the Town, except that the Registrar may charge the person requesting such exchange the amount
of any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect thereto.

The Registrar shall treat the registered owner as the person or entity exclusively entitled to
payment of principal, interest and premium, if any, and the exercise of all other rights and powers
of the owner, except that regular installments shall be paid to the person or entity shown as owner
on the registration books on the fifteenth day of the month preceding each payment date.

9. Delivery of Bond. The Mayor or Vice-Mayor and Clerk of the Town are
authorized and directed to take all proper steps to have the Bond prepared and executed in
accordance with its terms and to deliver it to the Lender thereof as set forth in the Agreement.

10.  Escrow Deposit Agreement. The Authorized Signatory is authorized and directed
to execute an escrow agreement (the "Escrow Agreement") for the purpose of refunding the Prior
Bond, with U.S. Bank, National Association acting as escrow agent (the "Escrow Agent"). The
Escrow Agreement shall be in the form approved by the Authorized Signatory, in collaboration
with the Town's bond counsel, the execution thereof by the Authorized Signatory to constitute
conclusive evidence of approval of the Escrow Agreement. The Escrow Agreement shall provide
for the irrevocable deposit of a portion of the proceeds of the Bond in a separate escrow fund which
shall be sufficient, when invested, to provide for payment of principal of and premium, if any, and
interest on the refunded Prior Bond. If requested by the Town, the Escrow Agent is authorized to
execute an initial and final subscription form for the purchase of investment and government
securities.

11.  Election to Apply Public Finance Act. Pursuant to Section 15.2-2601 of the
Virginia Code, it is hereby elected to have the Public Finance Act apply to the Bond exclusively
without regard to any charter or local act that might otherwise apply.

12. Limitation of Liability of Officials of Town. No covenant, condition or agreement
contained herein shall be deemed to be a covenant, agreement or obligation of an officer,
employee, member of Council, or agent of the Town in his or her individual capacity, and no

3



officer of the Town or member of Council executing the Bond shall be liable personally on the
Bond or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. No
officer, employee or agent of the Town shall incur any personal liability with respect to any other
action taken by him or her pursuant to this resolution provided he or she acts in good faith.

13.  Other Actions. All other actions of officials of the Town in conformity with the
purposes and intent of this Resolution and the Agreement and in furtherance of the issuance and
sale of the Bond are ratified, approved and confirmed. The officials of the Town are authorized
and directed to execute and deliver on behalf of the Town such agreements and other instruments,
documents or certificates, and to do and perform such things and acts, as they shall deem necessary
or appropriate to carry out the transactions authorized by this Resolution or contemplated by the
Bond or the Agreement, and all of the foregoing, previously done or performed by such officers
of the Town, are in all respects approved, ratified and confirmed.

14. Headings. Any headings in this resolution are solely for convenience of reference
and shall not constitute a part of the resolution nor shall they affect its meaning, construction or
effect.

15.  Constitutional Authority and Severability. The Bond shall be issued under the
provisions of Article VII, Section 10(a) of the Constitution of Virginia. The principal of and
interest on the Bond shall be payable from ad valorem taxes to be levied without limitation as to
rate or amount on all property in the Town subject to taxation, to the extent other funds of the
Town are not lawfully available and appropriated for such purpose. If any court of competent
jurisdiction shall hold any provision of this Resolution to be invalid and unenforceable, such
holding shall not invalidate any other provision hereof.

16.  Filing of Resolution. The Authorized Signatory and Clerk to the Town are
authorized and directed to see to the prompt filing of a certified copy of this Resolution in the
Circuit Court having jurisdiction over the Town, in accordance with Sections 15.2-2607 and 15.2-
2627 of the Public Finance Act.

17.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

Adopted: April 12, 2021.

Mayor of the Town of Tappahannock, Virginia
ATTEST:

Clerk of the Town of Tappahannock, Virginia



need not be made on such date, but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day, and, if
made on such next succeeding Business Day, no additional interest shall accrue for the period after
such payment date. “Business Day” means any Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or
Friday on which commercial banking institutions generally are open for business in New York and
Virginia. If an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing under the Agreement, the unpaid
principal amount of this Bond shall bear interest at the rate of nine percent (9.00%) per annum or
the maximum rate permitted under applicable law, whichever is less.

This Bond has been authorized by a resolution adopted by the Council of the Town on
April 12, 2021 (the “Bond Resolution™) and is issued pursuant to the Constitution and the Public
Finance Act of 1991 of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and the Agreement. Proceeds of this Bond
will be used to provide funds to (a) refinance the Town’s outstanding $2,410,000 General
Obligation Bond, Series 2016B, (b) pay the issuance and financing costs incurred in issuing this
Bond. Funds used to refinance the Prior Bond will be placed in escrow for the purpose therefor,
with U.S. Bank, National Association, as escrow agent, under an escrow agreement dated as of
May 6, 2021.

The full faith and credit of the Town are irrevocably pledged for the payment of principal
of and interest and premium, if any, on this Bond and the performance of the Town’s obligations
under the Agreement. Unless other funds are lawfully available and appropriated for timely
payment of this Bond, the Council of the Town shall levy and collect an annual ad valorem tax,
over and above all other taxes authorized or limited by law and without limitation as to rate or
amount, on all locally taxable property in the Town sufficient to pay when due the principal of and
interest and premium, if any, on this Bond.

Notwithstanding anything in this Bond to the contrary, in addition to the payments of the
principal, premium, if any, and interest provided for by this Bond, the Town shall also pay such
additional amounts, if any, which may be necessary to provide for payment in full of all amounts
due under the Agreement.

Upon an Event of Default (as defined in the Agreement) the holder of this Bond shall be
entitled to exercise the remedies available to it under the Agreement, including the payment of
interest at the default rate set forth therein.

This Bond may be redeemed at the option of the Town upon the terms and conditions set
forth in the Agreement. Capitalized terms used herein and not defined shall have the meaning as
set forth in the Agreement.

Transfer of this Bond may be registered upon the registration books of the Bond Registrar.
The Registrar shall treat the registered owner as the person exclusively entitled to payment of
principal, premium, if any, and interest on this Bond and the exercise of all other rights and powers
of the owner; provided that the regular installment payments of principal and interest shall be made
to the person shown as the owner on the fifteenth day of the month preceding each payment date.

The holder of this Bond shall not be required to present or surrender this Bond as a
condition of receiving payment due hereunder.



All acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and statutes of the
Commonwealth of Virginia to happen, exist or to be performed precedent to and in the issuance
of this Bond have happened, exist and have been performed, and this Bond, together with all other
indebtedness of the Town, is within every debt and other limitation prescribed by the Constitution
and statutes of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Town has caused this Bond to be signed by its Mayor and
the seal of the Town to be affixed hereto and attested by the Clerk of the Town, and this bond to
be dated the date first above written.

(SEAL)

Mayor of the Town of Tappahannock, Virginia

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Town of Tappahannock, Virginia



SCHEDULE 1

TOWN OF TAPPAHANNOCK
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND (TAXABLE),
SERIES 2021
Principal
Installment Installment
Number Amount Due Date

[to be completed at closing]



BOND PURCHASE AND LOAN AGREEMENT

Between: Truist Bank (the “Lender”)
Governmental Finance
5130 Parkway Plaza Boulevard
Charlotte, North Carolina 28217
Attention: Russell R. Akers, I1, Vice President
Telephone: (704) 954-1700

And: Town of Tappahannock, Virginia (the “Issuer”)
P.O.Box 266
915 Church Lane
Tappahannock, Virginia 22560
Attention: Eric S. Pollitt, Town Manager
Telephone: (804) 443-3336

Dated: As of May 1, 2021

This Bond Purchase and Loan Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of the date set forth above between the

Town of Tappahannock, Virginia (the “Issuer”) and Truist Bank, together with its successors and assigns (the

“Lender™). For and in consideration of the premises hereinafter contained, Issuer hereby agrees to issue and sell to

the Lender, and the Lender agrees to purchase and accept, the Bond, as defined below, on the terms set forth herein.
ARTICLEL  DEFINITIONS

As used in this Agreement, the following terms will have the meanings indicated below unless the context clearly
requires otherwise:

“Agreement” means this Bond Purchase and Loan Agreement executed between Issuer and Lender, including all
exhibits, schedules and attachments attached hereto.

“Authorizing Statute” means the Virginia Public Finance Act of 1991 in the Code of Virginia, as amended.

“Bond” means the Issuer’s § ,000 General Obligation Refunding Bond (Taxable), Series 2021, in the form
substantially as attached hereto as Attachment 1.

“Bond Counsel” means Estes Law & Consulting.
“Event of Default” is defined in Section 6.1.
“Issue Date” is May 6, 2021.

"Issuer" means the entity identified as such in the first paragraph of this Agreement, and its permitted successors and
assigns.

"Lender" means the entity identified as such in the first paragraph of this Agreement, and its successors and assigns.

“Loan” means the lending of proceeds of the Bond by the Lender, in exchange for the security of the Issuer’s Bond
and its execution of this Agreement, to the Issuer which shall place such funds in escrow through an Escrow
Agreement, of even date herewith, entered into by the Issuer with U.S. Bank, National Association, as escrow agent,
which shall use such funds to pay for the refunding of the outstanding portion of the Issuer’s $2,410,000 Bond, Series
2016B.



“Owner” means, when used with reference to the Bond, any person who shall be the registered owner of the Bond as
provided in the registration books of the Issuer.

“Resolution” means the resolution of the Council of Issuer adopted April 12, 2021, authorizing the execution and
delivery of this Agreement and the issuance of the Bond.

“State” means the Commonwealth of Virginia.
ARTICLE II. PURCHASE OF BOND

Section 2.1 Purchase and Form of Bond. On the terms, and subject to the conditions set forth in this
Agreement, Lender hereby agrees to extend credit as evidenced through its purchase of the Bond, at a price of 100
percent of the par amount thereof. The principal amount of the Bond shall be § ,000. The form of the Bond
is attached hereto as Attachment 1. The Bond is issued pursuant to the Authorizing Statute and the Resolution.

Section 2.2 Interest; Installments. The Bond shall bear interest at the rate of 2.07% per annum, calculated on
a 30/360-day basis. Issuer will repay the Bond by wire transfer to the Owner in accordance with written instructions
delivered by the Owner, or by such other medium acceptable to the Issuer and to the Owner, in semi-annual
installments, including interest on the outstanding principal balance on each April 1 and October 1 and principal on
each October 1, all beginning October 1, 2021 and with all such payments ending October 1, 2026. Payments of
Principal shall be made consistent with the Schedule I affixed to the Bond, which such Schedule is incorporated herein
and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

Section 2.3 Application. Any payments by Issuer to the Owner of the Bond shall be applied first to pay accrued
interest, and second to pay principal.

Section 2.4 Option to Prepay. Upon ten (10) days® written notice to the Owner, Issuer shall have the option to
prepay in whole the principal of the Bond, plus interest, fees and any other amounts accrued, due and owing at the
time of the prepayment.

ARTICLE IIl. COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS

Section 3.1 Covenants of the Issuer. As of the Issue Date, Issuer represents, covenants and warrants for the
benefit of Lender as follows:

(a) Issuer is a public body corporate and politic duly organized and existing under the constitution and laws of
the State with full power and authority to issue the Bond, and to enter into this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby and to perform all of its obligations thereunder.

) Issuer will do or cause to be done all things necessary to preserve and keep in full force and effect its existence
as a public body corporate and politic. To the extent Issuer should merge with another entity under the laws
of the State, Issuer agrees that as a condition to such merger it will require that the remaining or resulting
entity shall be assigned Issuer's rights and shall assume Issuer's obligations under the Bond and this
Agreement.

(©) Issuer has been duly authorized to issue the Bond and to execute and deliver this Agreement by proper action
by its governing body, or by other appropriate official approval, and all requirements have been met and
procedures have occurred in order to ensure the validity and enforceability of the Bond and this Agreement.
On the Issue Date, Issuer shall cause to be delivered an opinion of Bond Counsel as to the due authorization,
validity and enforceability of the Bond, with such changes therein as may be approved by Lender.

(d) Issuer will provide Lender with current financial statements and budgets and such financial or other
information of Issuer as Lender may request, in such form and containing such information as may be
requested by Lender. Within 270 days of the close of each fiscal year of the Issuer, the Issuer shall provide
Lender the complete audited financial statements of the Issuer.



(e)

The issuance of the Bond and the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and compliance
with the provisions thereof by Issuer does not conflict with or result in a violation or breach or constitute a
default under, any resolution, bond, agreement, indenture, mortgage, note, lease or other instrument to which
Issuer is a party or by which it is bound by any law or any rule, regulation, order or decree of any court,
governmental agency or body having jurisdiction over Issuer or any of its activities or properties resulting in
the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or other security interest or encumbrance of any nature
whatsoever upon any property or assets of Issuer or to which it is subject.

Section 3.2 Representations and Covenants of Lender. The Lender, as the initial registered Owner of the
Bond, makes the following representations as the basis for its undertakings hereunder:

(@)

®

(©

The Lender acknowledges that the Bond is being sold to the Lender in reliance on the registration exemption
contained in Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 and, as such, is not being registered with the
Securities Exchange Commission. The Lender represents that the Bond is being acquired for the Lender’s
own account for investment; provided, however, the Lender acting as agent, and, further, acting on its own,
without any expense or any liability to the Issuer, may not place the Bond, or any portion thereof representing
beneficial ownership interests therein, except as permitted by law. In such event, notwithstanding anything
to the contrary contained herein, the Lender shall be fully responsible for compliance with the Securities Act
of 1933, including rules and regulations promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission
thereunder, and any other applicable federal or state laws, in connection with dividing its participation with
others or any resale or any distribution of all or any portion of the Bond, including any expenses, costs or
other liabilities, and shall be responsible for any costs or expenses of the Issuer incurred by it, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees, as a result of such placement.

The Lender agrees that any future offer, sale, assignment or transfer of the Bond, if any, including any
participation therein, that may occur in the future, would be undertaken in accordance with applicable law.

Nothing contained herein shall operate to postpone the date on which, or change the form in which, principal,
premium, if any, or interest is payable under the terms of the Bond, or shall impair the obligation of the Issuer
to make payments as required by the Bond, all in accordance with the terms and provisions thereof.

Section 3.3 Conditions. Lender’s obligation to purchase the Bond on the Issue Date is subject to satisfaction
of the following conditions:

@
®

(©)

(d)

Lender shall have received a certified copy of the Resolution;

Lender shall have received an original of this Agreement and the Bond, duly executed by Issuer in accordance
with the Resolution;

Lender shall have received an opinion of Bond Counsel, in form and substance satisfactory to Lender’s
counsel, to the effect that:

i. The Bond has been authorized and issued in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State;
and
ii. the Resolution, this Agreement, and the Bond are valid and legally binding obligations of Issuer,

enforceable against Issuer in accordance with their terms, except to the extent that enforceability
may be limited by or rendered ineffective by (A) bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent conveyance,
reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally; (B) the
application of equitable principles and the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases;
(C) common law and statutes affecting the enforceability of contractual obligations generally; and
(D) principles of public policy concerning, affecting or limiting the enforcement of rights or
remedies against governmental entities such as Issuer.

Lender shall have received a certificate from counsel to the Issuer that the Issuer is not subject to any litigation

that could have a material adverse impact on Issuer’s financial condition, the validity and enforceability of
the Bond, this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated thereby.

3



(e) Lender shall have received the certificate of a duly authorized representative of Issuer to the effect that:

i. there is no action, suit, proceeding, or investigation at law or in equity before or by any court or
government, city or body pending or, to the best of the knowledge of Issuer, threatened against
Issuer to restrain or enjoin the adoption of the Resolution or the execution and delivery of this
Agreement or the issuance of the Bond, or the collection and application of funds as contemplated
by this Agreement and the Bond, which in the reasonable judgment of Issuer, would have a material
and adverse effect on the ability of Issuer to pay amounts due under the Bond, and

ii. the adoption of the Resolution and the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Bond do
not and will not conflict in any material respect with or constitute on the part of Issuer a breach of
or default under any law, charter provision, court decree, administrative regulation, resolution,
ordinance, or other agreement or instrument to which Issuer is a party or by which it is bound;

) Lender shall have received such additional legal opinions, certificates, proceedings, instruments, or other
documents as Lender or Bond Counsel may reasonably request to evidence compliance by Issuer with the
legal requirements for adoption of the Resolution, execution and delivery of this Agreement, issuance of the
Bond and the due performance or satisfaction by Issuer of all agreements then to be performed and all
conditions then to be satisfied by Issuer.

® Issuer shall have satisfied all of Lender’s required conditions precedent to closing.

ARTICLE 1IV. PAYMENT AND SECURITY

Section 4.1 Payment of Bond. Issuer shall promptly pay the principal of, and interest and premium, if any, on
the Bond in lawful money of the United States of America, in such amounts and on such dates as described in this
Agreement and the Bond, without presentation or surrender. Issuer shall pay the Owner a charge on any delinquent
payments in an amount sufficient to cover all additional costs and expenses incurred by Lender from such delinquent
payment. In addition, Issuer shall pay a late charge of five percent (5.00%) on all delinquent payments of principal
of and interest and premium, if any, on the Bond, and interest on said delinquent amounts from the date such amounts
were due until paid at the rate of nine percent (9.00%) per annum or the maximum amount permitted by law, whichever
is less.

Section 4.2 Tax Collection. Until full payment and performance of all obligations of Issuer under the Bond
and this Agreement, the Issuer will take all action necessary to ensure that a sufficient portion of its tax and other
revenues collected during the current year are set aside or otherwise made available for payment of the Bond in
accordance with its terms. Issuer certifies that the principal amount of the Bond does not exceed the anticipated taxes
and revenues of Issuer for the current year.

Section 4.3 Use of Proceeds. Unless otherwise waived by the Lender, the Issuer shall only use proceeds for
the purposes of the Loan.

Section 4.4 Full Faith and Credit. The full faith and credit of Issuer is irrevocably pledged for the payment of
the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on the Bond and all other payment obligations under this Agreement.
Unless other funds are lawfully available and appropriated for timely payment of the Bond and all other payment
obligations under this Agreement, Issuer shall levy and collect an annual ad valorem tax, over and above all other
taxes authorized or limited by law and without limitation as to rate or amount, on all locally taxable property in Issuer
sufficient to pay when due the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bond and all other payment
obligations under this Agreement.

Section 4.5 Obligations Absolute. To the extent permitted by law, the obligations of Issuer to make the
payments required under the Bond and this Agreement and to perform and observe the other agreements on its part
contained in the Bond and this Agreement shall be absolute and unconditional and shall not be abated, rebated, set-
off, reduced, abrogated, terminated, waived, diminished, postponed or otherwise modified in any manner or to any
extent whatsoever while any portion of the Bond remains unpaid regardless of any contingency, act of God, event or
cause whatsoever. Issuer shall pay absolutely the amounts required to be paid hereunder and under the Bond,

4



regardless of any rights of set-off, recoupment, abatement or counterclaim that Issuer might otherwise have against
Lender, its successors or assigns or any other party or parties.

Section 4.6 Agreement to Survive. The provisions of this Agreement will survive the issuance of the Bond
and the payment of the purchase price therefor. This Agreement will terminate upon the payment in full of all amounts
due under the Bond and this Agreement, provided that any prepayment is undertaken in accordance with Section 2.4
of this Agreement and further provided that Section 5.3 of this Agreement will survive its termination.

ARTICLE V. ASSIGNMENT; RISK OF LOSS

Section 5.1 Assignment by Owner. The Issuer expressly acknowledges that this Agreement and the Bond,
including (without limitation) the right to receive payments required to be made by the Issuer hereunder and to compel
or otherwise enforce performance by the Issuer of its other obligations hereunder, may be transferred, assigned and
reassigned in whole or in part to one or more assignees or subassignees by the Lender at any time subsequent to their
execution without the necessity of obtaining the consent of the Issuer. Nothing herein shall limit the right of the
Owner or its assignees to sell or assign participation interests in the Bond. Any assignment by the Owner shall be
deemed, without any further action, to assign the Owner’s interest in this Agreement. Issuer agrees to execute all
documents, including notices of assignment that may be reasonably requested by the Owner or any further assignee
to evidence any such assignment or reassignment, including without limitation the issuance of a new Bond of like
tenor registered in the name of the assignee upon surrender of the old Bond. If any Bond is lost, destroyed or stolen,
evidence of such loss, destruction or theft may be submitted to Issuer, and Issuer shall execute and deliver a new Bond
of like tenor in lieu of and in substitution for the Bond so lost, destroyed or stolen, upon receipt of a written request
from the Owner reasonably satisfactory to Issuer.

Section 5.2 Assignment by Issuer. NONE OF ISSUER'S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE BOND OR THIS
AGREEMENT MAY BE ASSIGNED BY ISSUER FOR ANY REASON, WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN
CONSENT OF THE OWNER.

Section 5.3 Risk of Loss Covenants. To the extent permitted by law, Issuer shall bear the risk of loss for, shall
pay directly, and shall defend against any and all claims, liabilities, proceedings, actions, expenses, damages or losses
arising under or related to the Bond or this Agreement, except that Issuer shall not bear the risk of loss of, nor pay for,
any claims, liabilities, proceedings, actions, expenses, damages or losses that arise directly from the gross negligence
or willful misconduct of the Lender.

ARTICLE V1. DEFAULT

Section 6.1 Events of Default Defined. Any of the following shall constitute an “Event of Default” under this
Agreement:
(a) Failure by Issuer to make any payment of principal of, or interest or premium on, the Bond, or other payment

required to be paid under this Agreement, at the time specified therein;

()] Failure by Issuer to observe and perform any covenant, condition or agreement on its part to be observed or
performed with respect to the Bond or this Agreement, other than as referred to in subparagraph (a) above,
for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied
is given to Issuer by the Owner, unless the Owner shall agree in writing to an extension of such time prior to
its expiration; provided that, if the failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within the applicable period,
the Owner will not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of such time if corrective action is
instituted by Issuer within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected;

(c) Any statement, representation or warranty made by Issuer in this Agreement or the Bond shall prove to have
been false, incorrect, misleading or breached in any material respect on the date when made;

(d Issuer shall (i) apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator of Issuer,
or of all or a substantial part of the assets of Issuer, (ii) be unable, fail or admit in writing its inability generally
to pay its debts as they become due, (iii) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (iv) have an

5



order for relief entered against it under applicable federal bankruptcy law, or (v) file a voluntary petition in
bankruptcy or a petition or an answer seeking reorganization or an arrangement with creditors or taking
advantage of any insolvency law or any answer admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against
Issuer in any bankruptcy, reorganization or insolvency proceeding;

(e) Issuer shall default on any of its indebtedness issued (including any leases, liens, loans or other obligations
subject to the annual appropriation of funds) whether or not on a parity basis with the Bond, which
indebtedness remains uncured after any applicable cure period permitted by such indebtedness; or

® An order, judgment or decree shall be entered by any court of competent jurisdiction, approving a petition or
appointing a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator of Issuer or of all or a substantial part of the assets of
Issuer, in each case without its application, approval or consent, and such order, judgment or decree shall
continue unstayed and in effect for any period of 60 consecutive days.

Section 6.2 Remedies on Default. If an Event of Default shall have occurred, the Owner may proceed against
Issuer and its agents, officers and employees to protect and enforce the rights of the Owner under the Bond and this
Agreement by mandamus or by other suit, action or special proceedings in equity or at law, in any court of competent
jurisdiction, either for the appointment of a receiver or for the specific performance of any covenant or agreement
contained in the Bond or in this Agreement, or in an award of execution of any power herein granted for the
enforcement of any proper, legal or equitable remedy as the Owner may deem most effectual to protect and to enforce
its rights under the Bond or this Agreement, or to enjoin any act or thing which may be unlawful or in violation of any
right of the Owner under the Bond or this Agreement, or to require Issuer to act as if it were the trustee of an express
trust, or any combination of such remedies or such other remedy that is available to the Owner under applicable law.
While any Event of Default exists, the unpaid principal amount of the Bond shall bear interest at the rate of 9 percent
(9.00%) per annum or the maximum rate permitted by applicable law, whichever is less.

Section 6.3 No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy conferred upon or reserved to the Owner in this Agreement or
the Bond is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other
remedy given under this Agreement or the Bond now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission
to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to
be a waiver thereof, but any such right or power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed
expedient. In order to entitle the Owner to exercise any remedy reserved to it in this Article it shall not be necessary
to give any notice, other than such notice as may be required in this Article.

Section 6.4 Costs and Attorney Fees. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default by Issuer in the performance
of any term of this Agreement or the Bond, Issuer agrees to pay to the Owner or reimburse the Owner for, in addition
to all other amounts due hereunder, all of Lender's costs of collection, including reasonable attorney fees, whether or
not suit or action is filed thereon. Any such costs shall be immediately due and payable upon written notice and
demand given to Issuer, and shall bear interest at the rate of 9 percent (9.00%) per annum or the maximum amount
permitted by law, whichever is less. In the event suit or action is instituted to enforce any of the terms of this
Agreement or the Bond, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party such sum as the court
may adjudge reasonable as attorneys' fees at trial or on appeal of such suit or action or in any bankruptcy proceeding,
in addition to all other sums provided by law.

ARTICLE VI1. MISCELLANEOUS

Section 7.1 Notices. All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be sufficiently given and
shall be deemed given when delivered or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, or by overnight courier to the
parties hereto at the addresses immediately after the signatures to this Agreement (or at such other address as either
party hereto shall designate in writing to the other for notices to such party), to any assignee at its address as it appears
on the registration books maintained by Issuer.

Section 7.2 Anti-Money, Laundering, Bank Secrecy and Patriot Act Compliance. The Issuer agrees to
observe and comply, to the extent applicable, with all anti-money laundering laws, rules and regulations including,
without limitation, regulations issued by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the United States Department of
Treasury and the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network of the U.S. Department of Treasury. The Issuer shall provide

6



to the Owner such information as the Owner may require to enable the Owner to comply with its obligations under
the Bank Secrecy Act of 1970, as amended (“BSA”), or any regulations enacted pursuant to the BSA or any
regulations, guidance, supervisory directive or order of the New York State Department of Financial Services or
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. To help the United States government fight funding of terrorism and money
laundering activities, Federal law requires all financial institutions to obtain, verify, and record information that
identifies each person who opens an account or enters into a loan/lease transaction. When an account is opened and
from time to time as be required by the Owner’s internal policies and procedures, the Owner shall be entitled to ask
for such information that will allow it to identify relevant parties. For a non-individual person such as a business
entity, a charity, a trust, or other legal entity, the Owner may ask for documentation to verify its formation and
existence as a legal entity. The Owner may also ask to see financial statements, licenses, identification, and
authorization documents from individuals claiming authority to represent the entity or other relevant documentation.
The Parties acknowledge that a portion of the identifying information set forth herein is being requested by the Owner
in connection with Title III of the USA Patriot Act, Pub.L. 107-56 (the “Act”), and the Issuer agrees to provide any
additional information requested by the Lender in its sole discretion in connection with the Act or any other legislation,
regulation, regulatory order or published guidance to which the Owner is subject, in a timely manner.

Section 7.3 Further Assurances. Issuer agrees to execute such other and further documents and to take all
such action as may be necessary or appropriate, from time to time, in the reasonable opinion of the Owner, to
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, and to carry out the purposes and intentions of this
Agreement.

Section 7.4 Binding Effect. This Agreement and the Bond shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding
upon the Owner and Issuer and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

Section 7.5 Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable
by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision
hereof,

Section 7.6 Waiver of Jury Trials. Issuer and Lender hereby irrevocably waive all right to trial by jury in any
action, proceeding or counterclaim (whether based on contract, tort or otherwise) arising out of or relating to the Bond
or this Agreement or the actions of Lender or Issuer in the negotiation, administration, performance or enforcement
hereof.

Section 7.7 Amendments, Changes and Modifications. This Agreement may only be amended in writing by
the Owner and Issuer.

Section 7.8 Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement hereunder may be simultaneously executed in several
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

Section 7.9 Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws
of the State.
Section 7.10 Captions. The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no way

define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Agreement.

Section 7.11 No Fiduciary Relationship. The Issuer acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement is an arm’s length, commercial transaction between the Issuer and the Lender in
which the Lender is acting solely as a principal and is not acting as a municipal advisor, financial advisor or fiduciary
to the Issuer; (ii) the Lender has not assumed any advisory or fiduciary responsibility to the Issuer with respect to the
transaction contemplated hereby and the discussions, undertakings and procedures leading thereto; (iii) the only
obligations the Lender has to the Issuer with respect to the transaction contemplated hereby expressly are set forth in
this Agreement; and (iv) the Issuer has consulted its own legal, accounting, tax, financial and other advisors, as
applicable, to the extent it has deemed appropriate.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

7



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lender and Issuer have caused the Bond Purchase Agreement to be executed in their

names by their duly authorized representatives as of the date first above written.

Lender: Truist Bank

Issuer: Town of Tappahannock, Virginia

By: By:
Name: Name: Roy M. Gladding
Title: Title: Mayor

Address for Notice:

Truist Bank, N.A.

5130 Parkway Plaza Boulevard
Charlotte, North Carolina 28217
Telephone: (704) 954-1700
Attention: Vice President

Attest:

By:

Name: Eric S. Pollitt

Title: Town Manager

Address for Notice:

P.O. Box 266

915 Church Lane
Tappahannock, Virginia 22560
Telephone: (804) 443-3336
Attention: Town Manager




ATTACHMENT 1
Form of Bond

[See Transcript Tab 3]



Town Manager TOWN OF TAPPAHANNOCK
Eric Dollitt

Town Attorncy P. O. Box 266

Diane M. Lank Tappahannock, Virginia 22560

Toton Treasurer (804) 443-3336 Fax (804) 443-1051
Faye D. Johnson wwwetappahannock-va.gov

Town Clerk

Patsy K. Scates

Chicf of Police

James G. Ashworth Jr.

CURRENT POLICY
Mileage Reimbursement

In the event that a Town vehicle is not available for use, the employee may use
his private vehicle on approval by the department head. The town will reimburse
the employee an amount equal to $0.26 per mile, except where a federal grant
provides 100 % reimbursement at a higher rate.

PROPOSED POLICY
Mileage Reimbursement

In the event that a Town vehicle is not available for use, the employee may use
his private vehicle on approval by the department head. The town will reimburse
the employee the standard IRS annual mileage rate.

Mayor

Roy M. Glaclcling
Town Council

Kay Carlton
Marcia W, Jenkins
Fleet Dillard
Kenneth A. Gillis
Troy L. Balderson
Anita ). Latane



Gene Reams & Associates



Contract for Services

Gene Reams & Associates (GRA) proposes the following considerations for grant proposal writing
services for the Town of Tappahannock. All proposal information shall be for the benefit of
Tappahannock for programs and projects identified in the areas of:

e Police Department Generator, State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) grant.

The Town of Tappahannock shall appoint a representative/liaison to coordinate with and provide GRA
with the following informational needs:

¢ Areas of concern with a nexus to terrorism

* In-depth descriptions for identified projects and programs

¢ All information necessary to fund the project and demonstrate appropriate funding need and the
ability to sustain the equipment.

GRA will utilize this information to create the narrative and application needs necessary to meet the
SHSP Guidelines' intent and submit the funding proposals on behalf of the Town of Tappahannock.

The fee for this project is $2500 to be paid at ratification of the contract. This fee is for the completed
application submission only. All quarterly reporting, financial reporting, and record keeping shall be the
grant recipient's responsibility unless otherwise identified and contracted.

This agreement in no way guarantees that this project will be funded or given any other consideration.
This contract guarantees only the completion and submission of the application according to the SHSP
guidelines. The Town Manager or appointee will have final approval of narratives before submission.

Confidentiality

During the outlined proposed duties, GRA may gain knowledge of information that Tappahannock
considers confidential and proprietary. GRA will not use or disclose any confidential or proprietary
information for any purpose without the express written permission of the Town of Tappahannock. GRA
agrees that any documents containing confidential or proprietary information shall remain the property of
the Town of Tappahannock and shall at its request be returned or destroyed at the expiration of the
agreement.

The Town of Tappahannock and GRA agree to the above contract.

3/3/2021
Client Signature and Date GRA Signature and Date

Gene Reams
Print Name and Title Print Name and Title




TAPPAHANNOCK

FACADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT £

The Fagade Improvement Grant (FIG) program is an initiative to Y} ially improve business properties
demonstrating a need for public investment to spur further inves;a'ﬁe"fxt"‘fgv m the private sector. The goal

is to visually enhance the streetscape and increase interest in the.

The program will be administered by Economic Dev .matchi

reimbursement program which requires the applicaf 0 make thenitial investment of ] ie.full project

costs; 50% of the eligible costs will be paid as a feimbursement based on verifiable evi ,_'é_?éé of payment
rantpaid after the fact. 4

(canceled checks and receipts) — essentially a 1:1 matchi;

The maximum FIG amount available for any approved project:
available on a first-come, first-served basis'until the funding po
appropriated each fiscal year (beginning J uly:1stand ending June 30th

roperty is $5,000. Funding is
‘has been exhausted annually as
> following year).

All recipients are required to enter into a FIG’EAgreefn__ ocument that will establish the conditions of
approval and terms of grant disbursement. Anlnd}\riaual owner, iL.C., and/or other type of IRS
recognizable holding company:who owns multiplé properties and has applied for multiple projects in
town may only receiVe a maximum of $10,000 in funding per fiscal year referenced above.
T, 3 il

1 commercial, industrial, ofﬁﬁ:ggé;br mixed-use properties zoned in Central
Commercial (CC-1), General Comiriercial (CG-2), and Industrial (I-1) are eligible. New construction is
not eligible:and the applyin, opewémﬁt____bq-gg least 5 years old as of July 1st of that application year.
fty mustbe Gurrent with taxes and fees and may not have outstanding codes violations (exception:
tify). Facades proposed for improvement must be visible from the public right-
'and home occupations are not eligible.

Eligibility — All existin

. Ghh i
Allowable Improvements - All improvements must be allowable through the Town’s Downtown and
HistoriciOverlay guidelines (if applicable) and may require approval from the Historic Overlay
Commission. Lhese may include; contracted labor (including project management fees); decorative

‘or Juliet/balconies, lighting, painting, improvements in response to code violations,
installation, rep eplacement of exterior signage, siding (i.e., wood, metal, vinyl etc.), permanent
hardscape improvements (i.e., cement pots or fixed planter boxes), masonry repairs and tuck pointing,
public art and murals, removal/ replacement of architecturally inappropriate or incompatible exterior
finishes and materials or signs, restoration of architectural details or removal of materials that cover
architectural details, repair and/or replacement of windows and exterior doors, roofing (in conjunction
with other improvements only), screening of service and maintenance areas when visible from adjacent
public areas, window and cornice flashing and repair, up to 15% contingency may be reimbursed, as
based on contractor’s estimates




Prohibited Improvements — Billboards, interior improvements, improvements in progress or expenses
incurred prior to final approval, landscaping, mechanical and HVAC systems, new construction,
temporary signage, security systems (i.e., cameras, window bars, etc.)

Application Process - The FIG application can be submitted either before or after completion of a
project for reimbursement. A permit to begin work is required on all improvements, and additional
approvals may be required from the Historical Overlay Commission, if applicable.

A. Apply Before Project Completion

i.  The pre-application before the project is completed can be
Zoning Staff for review. The application is not consider
application incomplete.
ii.  The pre-application identifies all required information
finished product along with estimated installatioﬁ:'gp§§,b
iii.  Staff confirms eligibility of project based o
iv.  Applications are not considered complet;;
V. Once the project is completed, the applic on will include photos of finis

presented to the Economic Development q%uee for final approval.
vi.  Applicant will receive written notice of decision within 15 business days of¢eview. Funds

for approved applications will be disbursed within 5 business days after grant approval.

{Ubmitted'to the Planning and
submitted if staff views the

chments of examples of
L, . . %\

) ﬁr'e-api)hcatlon materials:,
ntil the project is finished.

AT

d‘-’product is then

1

to inquire about project eligibility.
ii. -

¢ Visit to verify completion as necessary.
] equest a completed application.
ireferred to Economic Development Committee for grant approval.

\ itten notice ofidecision within 15 business days of review. Funds
for approved:applications will be disbur§§d;}i'ithin 15 business days after grant approval.

h requires the applicant to make the initial investment
%0 of the eligible costs will be paid as a reimbursement up to $5,000

ayment;(canceled checks and/or receipts).

L , and/or-'gther type of IRS recognizable holding company who owns
perties and has applied for multiple projects in town may only receive a maximum of
inding per ﬁsga] year referenced above.

Y 4
Funding is available'unfil the funding pool has been exhausted on an annual basis as appropriated.
Grant payments will not be made if fagade improvements deviate from those outlined in the allowable
improvements and/or have not been previously approved. Grant funds are paid as a one-time
reimbursement, not draws. FIG projects must be maintained at a minimum of 3 years upon date of
disbursement of funds, otherwise property owner may not be eligible for future FIG funds.



Town Manager TOWN OF TAPPAHANNOCK

Eric Pollitt —_
Town Attomcy P.O. Box 266
Diane M. Lank Tappahannock, Virginia 22560

(804) 443-3336 Fax (804) 443-1051

wuwu. tappahannoc]e-va.gov

7:7“.‘)1 Treasurcr

Faye D. Johnson

Town Clerk
Patsy K. Scates

Chicf of Police
James G. Ashworth Jr. April 9, 2021

To: Mayor, Town Attorney, and All Council Members:

The regular meeting will be held on:

MONDAY, APRIL 12, 2021 6:45 P.M.

LOCATION: VIRTUAL

Per the restrictions placed by the Governor of Virginia the meeting will be held by zoom.

PLEASE FIND ENCLOSED THE FOLLOWING:
Agenda

Public Hearing Notice

Agenda Notes

Water/Sewer Report

Town Manager Report

VRA Refinance Packet

Mileage Reimbursement

Gene Reams and Associates Contract
Tappahannock Fagade Grant Program

RN b W=

Mayor

Roy M. Gladding
Town Council

Kay Carlton
Marcia W. Jenkins
Fleet Dillard
Kenneth A. Gillis
Troy L. Balderson
Anita]. Latane



